
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of  

the Licensing Regulatory Committee 

on Monday, 28 November 2022, at 2.15 p.m. 

in the District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, 
Kendal 

 

Committee Membership 
 

Councillors 
 

Rupert Audland 

Brian Cooper 

Pete Endsor 

Alvin Finch 

Tom Harvey 

Hazel Hodgson 

Kevin Holmes 

Helen Irving 

Andrew Jarvis 

Helen Ladhams (Chairman) 

Ian Mitchell 

Doug Rathbone 

Heather Troughton 

David Webster 

Ian Wharton (Vice-Chairman) 

 

 
Note – Where relevant, agendas for Members are labelled “Private Document Pack” and 
contain exempt information within the papers. Any relevant pages are marked as restricted 
within Agendas labelled “Public Document Pack”. 
 
Friday, 18 November 2022 
 
Julia Krier, Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist-Solicitor (Monitoring Officer) 
 
For all enquiries, please contact:-  

Committee Administrator: Committee Services 

 

Telephone: 01539 733333 

e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence, if any.  

2  MINUTES  5 - 8 

 To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting of the Committee held on 4 July 2022 (copy attached). 

 

3  MINUTES OF LICENSING REGULATORY SUB-COMMITTEES  9 - 16 

 To receive the minutes of the meetings of Licensing Regulatory Sub-
Committees held on 11 August 2022 and 15 September 2022 (copies attached) 
and for the Chairmen of the appropriate Sub-Committees to sign, as correct 
records. 

 

4  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this 
Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.) 
 
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as 
any other registrable or other interests. 
 
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of 
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised 
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 

5  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS   

 To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be 
considered in the presence of the press and public. 

 

6  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make representations 
or present a deputation or petition at this meeting should apply to do so by no 
later than 0:01am (one minute past midnight) two working days before the 
meeting.  Information on how to make the application can be obtained by 
viewing the Council’s Website www.southlakeland.gov.uk or by contacting the 
Committee Services Team on 01539 733333. 
 
(1) Questions and Representations 
 
 To receive any questions or representations which have been received 

from members of the public. 
 
(2) Deputations and Petitions 
 

 

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


 To receive any deputations or petitions which have been received from 
members of the public. 

7  HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARE REVIEW  17 - 26 

 To consider a further review of the South Lakeland Hackney Carriage maximum 
fare tariff. 

 

PART II   

 Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph 
number) 

There are no items in this part of the agenda. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
04.07.2022 Licensing Regulatory Committee 
 

 

LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Committee held in 
the Assembly Room, Kendal Town Hall, Kendal, on Monday, 4 July 2022, at 2.15 p.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

 Helen Ladhams (Chairman) 
Ian Wharton (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Rupert Audland 

Pete Endsor 
Hazel Hodgson 

 

Kevin Holmes 
Helen Irving 
Ian Mitchell 

 

Doug Rathbone 
David Webster 

 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Brian Cooper and Andrew 
Jarvis. 
 

Officers 
 

Sean Hall Principal Specialist (Health & Environment) 

Rachel Ireland Trainee Solicitor 

Jane McKeon Case Management Officer (Support Services) 

 

LR/1 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED - That it be noted that the following Declaration of Interest was made:- 
 
(1) Councillor David Webster raised a non-pecuniary interest for transparency by 

virtue of the fact that he knew one of the local private hire operators which was 
discussed under Minute No. LR/26 - Review of South Lakeland District Council 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licencing Policy. 

 

LR/2 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there are no excluded items on the Agenda.  
 

LR/3 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there were no members of the public present.  
 

LR/4 REVIEW OF SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND 
PRIVATE HIRE LICENSING POLICY  
 
Note – Councillor David Webster, for the purpose of transparency, declared a 
non-pecuniary interest in this item by virtue of the fact that he knew one of the 
local private hire operators within the District; however, he was not bias or 
predetermined, therefore he remained in the meeting with voting rights.  
 
The Principal Specialist for the Health & Environment provided a report on the revised 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2022 following public consultation. 
The recommendation was for the Committee to approve the revised Policy. The Policy 

Page 5

Item No.2



2 
04.07.2022 Licensing Regulatory Committee 
 

 

has been reviewed in line with Statutory and best practice guidance for taxi and 
licensing authorities, with the suggested amendments listed within the report. Should 
the Members approve this draft Policy, it is due to proceed to Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee prior to adoption.  
 
The current Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy was approved by the 
Committee in December 2018, since that date there have been a number of changes to 
take into consideration.  
 
The Officer provided an outline of the background and proposals. Subsequent 
amendments agreed at the Licencing Regulatory Committee on 07 February 2022 are 
included within the report. As are the additional proposals following public consultation. 
Each amendment is referenced to the relevant paragraph of the draft Policy included in 
brackets and are also highlighted in red within the draft Policy at Appendix 1.  
 
The Chairman prompted questions from Members.  
 
Members requested clarification on whether it was only new vehicles that must apply to 
the minimum Euro 6 standards. The Officer responded to confirm the affirmative and 
that all new vehicles engines must be at a minimum of Euro 6 standard. This is being 
implemented to ensure that new vehicles on the SLDC fleet are not emitting dangerous 
levels of emissions and pollution. The Council supports and will encourage the use of 
low-carbon alternative vehicles, particularly the use of electric vehicles for Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire purposes.   
 
RESOLVED – That the Licencing Regulatory Committee:- 
 

(1)  Noted the contents of the report; and 

(2)  Approved the draft Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Licensing Policy 

(Appendix 1) and agreed that this be adopted following the meeting of the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting unless any matters are referred 

back to the Committee. 

 

LR/5 THE GAMBLING ACT 2005 - REVIEW STATEMENT OF GAMBLING LICENSING 
POLICY  
 
The Principal Specialist for the Health & Environment provided a report on the revised 
Statement of Gambling Licencing Policy following a review and a formal consultation 
period.  
 
The revised Policy has undertaken a formal consultation process in line with Regulation 
7 of The Gambling Act 2005 (Licensing Authority Policy Statement) (England and 
Wales) Regulations 2005. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee have also been 
consulted on the revised Policy at their meeting on 04 March 2022. Should the revised 
draft Policy be approved, the matter should then progress to Full Council for approval 
in advance of the policy becoming the new licensing framework for stakeholders within 
South Lakeland District.  
 
The Officer relayed that this Policy has sought to support and strengthen three 
Gambling Licencing Objectives:  
 

 Preventing gambling from being a source of crime and disorder, being 

associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime; 

 Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way;  

Page 6



3 
04.07.2022 Licensing Regulatory Committee 
 

 

 Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or 

exploited by gambling.  

 

It was approved by the Licensing Regulatory Committee on 7 February 2022 that the 
revised Policy could proceed to public consultation. It was also approved at The 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 4 March 2022 that they recommend to the 
Licencing Regulatory Committee and Full Council that the revised Statement of 
Gambling Licensing Policy (Appendix 1) be adopted following the public consultation, 
and consideration of any comments received.  
 
The Chairman prompted questions from Members.  
 
No further questions were put forward.  
 
RESOLVED: That The Licensing Regulatory Committee agreed to:-  
 

1) Note the recommendation from The Overview and Scrutiny Committee that the 

revised Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy be adopted following the public 

consultation, and consideration of any comments received; 

2) Note that no comments were received during the public consultation for 

members to consider; and  

3) Recommend to Full Council that the Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 

(Appendix 1) be adopted.   

 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 2.25 p.m. 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



1 
11.08.2022 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee 
 

 

LICENSING REGULATORY SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee held 
in the District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, Kendal, on Thursday, 11 August 
2022, at 10.00 a.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 

Alvin Finch 
 

Helen Irving 
 

David Webster 
 

Officers 
 

Rachel Ireland Trainee Solicitor 

Donna McCarthy Specialist (Licensing) 

Adam Moffatt Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist 

Josie Smith Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist (Solicitor) 

 

LRS/1 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  
 
RESOLVED – That Councillor Helen Irving, be elected Chairman for the meeting. 
 

LRS/2 APOLOGIES AND RECONSTITUTION OF MEMBERSHIP  
 
There were no apologies and there had been no change in the membership of the Sub-
Committee and, therefore, no reconstitution was necessary. 
 

LRS/3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interests were raised. 
 

LRS/4 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there are no excluded items on the agenda 
 

LRS/5 INTRODUCTIONS  
 
The Chairman made introductions and read out the procedure for the meeting. 
 

LRS/6 APPLICATION TO RENEW HACKNEY CARRIAGE LICENCE CONTRARY TO 
VEHICLE AGE LIMIT POLICY  
 
The Licensing Specialist presented a report regarding an application to renew the 
hackney carriage vehicle licence, which would require the Council to dispense with the 
current vehicle age limit policy. In this instance, the vehicle in question was more than ten 
years old and was not a wheelchair accessible vehicle. 
 
The Applicant’s vehicle was first registered on 5 September 2011 and had covered 
277,605 miles since this time. The vehicle had been nine years and ten months old when 
it was transferred to the Applicant and was not an accessible vehicle. The Licensing 
Specialist noted four failed MOTs, details of which were set out in Appendix 2 to the 
report. 
 

Page 9

Item No.3



2 
11.08.2022 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee 
 

 

In response to a query raised by Members, the Licensing Specialist informed the Sub-
Committee that any failures in MOT should be reported to the licensing authority by the 
garage and Applicant, neither of which had happened on this occasion. 
 
A further question was asked, regarding approximately 300 miles, which had been added 
to the vehicles mileage during the period when the vehicle had no valid MOT certificate. 
  
The Applicant addressed the Sub-Committee, he referred to the difficulty faced during the 
Covid-19 Pandemic which meant he had not been able to buy a vehicle straight away 
which was the reasoning behind the application to extend for 12 months. He informed the 
Sub-Committee that he had been driving in the area for 15 years and had never asked for 
an extension within that period. 
 
The Applicant informed the Committee that his previous vehicle, with a 2014 registration 
plate, had been stolen and that he had quit taxi driving during the Covid-19 pandemic until 
restrictions had been lifted. He concluded by informing the Sub-Committee that the car 
ran well despite the high mileage and noted the extended inspection report as set out in 
the agenda. 
 
The Applicant provided answers to questions raised by Sub-Committee Members 
regarding why he had not informed the Council of the failed MOT, his actions following the 
failed MOT and the condition of the vehicle’s tyres. 
 
The Applicant responded to queries raised by the Licensing Specialist regarding daily 
vehicle checks. 
 
Following a request from the Chairman, the Applicant presented the vehicle to Members 
for inspection. 
 
Note – The Sub-Committee passed a resolution to adjourn the meeting to exclude 
the press and public in making its decision and retired in accordance with 
Regulation 14(2) of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 (as 
amended) in order to further consider the application. 
 
The Sub-Committee, supported by the Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist  
(Solicitor) and Trainee Solicitor, then withdrew at 10.50 a.m.to consider the application. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 11.44 a.m. 
 
The Trainee Solicitor communicated the Sub-Committee’s decision. 
 
The Licensing Sub-Committee, having read and heard the representations made by the 
Applicant, and based on the submitted report, including the report of MGD Limited, and 
following an inspection of the vehicle by members of the Sub-Committee, the Sub-
Committee 
  
RESOLVED – That the Council’s age limit policy be dispensed with on this occasion and 
that Mr. Ullah be granted a renewal for his Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence for the 
vehicle bearing the registration mark MF61 ERY, for a 12 month period. 
 
The evidence presented to Members at the hearing and documents contained within the 
report showed that: 
  

a. The Applicant’s vehicle undergoes a four-monthly MOT tests in accordance with 
the Council’s Policy due to the vehicle being over 8 years old; 

Page 10



3 
11.08.2022 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee 
 

 

 
b. The Engineers report and inspection, which was conducted on 22 April 2022 at 

Appendix 1, did not identify any problems; 
 

c. Members were satisfied with the current state of the vehicle in light of the evidence 
before them; and 
 

d. This application was the Applicant’s first extension request beyond the Council’s 
Ten Years Age Limit for Hackney Carriage Vehicle. 

  
In accordance with the Council’s Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Licensing Policy, the 
Applicant must produce to the Licensing Authority a test certificate, showing pass or fail, 
for every MOT test and Hackney Carriage Vehicle Inspection conducted throughout the 
licence period.  
 
Additional Observation 
 
Members wished to make an additional observation in relation to the information that has 
been presented today, Members were concerned that the vehicle was driven for a 
substantial distance without a valid MOT certificate and, although, the Applicant’s position 
is that the vehicle was not operating as a hackney carriage vehicle during this time, the 
Members of the Sub-Committee requested that the Licensing department consider if the 
Council’s Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Licensing Policy had been breached, and if 
appropriate, take further action. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 11.47 a.m. 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



5 
15.09.2022 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee 
 

 

LICENSING REGULATORY SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee held 
in the District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, Kendal, on Thursday, 15 
September 2022, at 10.00 a.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 
   

Kevin Holmes 
 

Helen Irving 
 

Ian Wharton 
 

 

Officers 
 

Jane McKeon Case Management Officer (Support Services) 

Josie Smith Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist (Solicitor) 

Tony Smith Licensing Specialist - Health & Environment 

 
NOTE - A minute’s silence was held in memory of Her Majesty Queen Elizabeth II. 
 

LRS/7 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  
 
RESOLVED – That Councillor Kevin Holmes be elected Chairman for the meeting. 
 

LRS/8 APOLOGIES AND RECONSTITUTION OF MEMBERSHIP  
 
There were no apologies and there had been no change in the membership of the Sub-
Committee and, therefore, no reconstitution was necessary. 
 

LRS/9 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interests were raised. 
 

LRS/10 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there are no excluded items on the agenda. 
 

LRS/11 INTRODUCTIONS  
 
The Chairman made introductions and read out the procedure for the meeting. 
 

LRS/12 APPLICATION TO RENEW HACKNEY CARRIAGE VEHICLE CONTRARY TO 
VEHICLE AGE LIMIT POLICY  
 
The Licensing Specialist presented a report regarding an application to renew the 
hackney carriage vehicle licence, which would require the Council to dispense with the 
current Vehicle Age Limit Policy. In this instance, the vehicle in question was more than 
ten years old and was not a wheelchair accessible vehicle. 
 

Page 13



6 
15.09.2022 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee 
 

 

The Applicant’s vehicle was first registered on 15 May 2012 and had been licenced as a 
hackney carriage since September 2016.  Details of the vehicle’s MOT history are 
included as Appendix 2 to the report. 
 
The Applicant confirmed that he did not wish to ask the Licensing Specialist any 
questions.  
 
Members sought clarification on some of the defects of the vehicle found within the MOT. 
The Licensing Officer reported that the defects in question could only have been picked 
up by a specialist with the appropriate equipment. On inspection of the vehicle, no 
apparent issues had been be found.  
 
The Applicant addressed the Sub-Committee, he confirmed that he was aware of the ten 
year vehicle age limit rule. He explained that due to the difficulty faced during the Covid-
19 Pandemic his income had dropped significantly. The Applicant advised that the taxi 
was his main source of income which meant he had not been able to buy a replacement 
vehicle. The Applicant thanked Members for considering his Application.  
 
The Licensing Officer had no further questions and advised the Committee that he had 
inspected the vehicle with a colleague and found the vehicle to be in very good condition.   
 
Members from the Licencing Sub-Committee did not have any questions for the Applicant 
 
When asked to provide a summary of his Application the Applicant confirmed that both 
Licensing Specialists had inspected the vehicle and requested that his Application for the 
renewal of his licence be granted.  
 
Note – The Sub-Committee passed a resolution to adjourn the meeting to exclude the 
press and public in making its decision and retired in accordance with Regulation 14(2) of 
the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 (as amended) in order to further 
consider the application. 
 
The Sub-Committee, supported by the Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist 
(Solicitor), then withdrew at 10.10 a.m. to consider the application. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 10.23 a.m. 
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist (Solicitor) communicated the Sub-
Committee’s decision. 
 
Having read and heard the representations made orally and in writing by the Applicant, 
and based on the submitted report, the Sub-Committee: 
  
RESOLVED – That the Council’s age limit policy be dispensed with on this occasion and 
that Mr. Evans be granted a renewal for his Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence for the 
vehicle bearing the registration mark LL12 BZC, for a 12 month period. 
 

Page 14



7 
15.09.2022 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee 
 

 

The evidence presented to Members at the hearing and documents contained within the 
report showed that: 
  
a. The Applicant’s vehicle undergoes a four-monthly MOT tests in accordance with 
the Council’s Policy due to the vehicle being over 8 years old; 
 
b. The Engineers report and inspection did not identify any problems; 
 
c. Members were satisfied with the current state of the vehicle in light of the evidence 
before them; and 
 
d. This application was the Applicant’s first extension request beyond the Council’s 
Ten Years Age Limit for Hackney Carriage Vehicle. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



South Lakeland District Council 

Licensing Regulatory Committee 

Monday, 28 November 2022 

Hackney Carriage Fare Review 

 

Portfolio:   Economy, Culture and Leisure Portfolio Holder 

Report from:  Director of Customer and Commercial Services 

Report Author: Sean Hall – Principal Specialist (Health & Environment) 

Wards:  (All Wards) 

Forward Plan: This fare review is a function of the SLDC Hackney Carriage & Private 
Hire Policy dated August 2022 and is delegated to the Licensing 
Regulatory Committee. 

1.0 Expected Outcome and Measures of Success 

1.1 On the 17th January 2022, the Licensing Regulatory Committee resolved to increase 
the maximum Hackney Carriage fare tariff by 5.4% subject to the consultation period. 
Two representations were received following the statutory consultation of this increase 
which were considered by the Licensing Regulatory Committee at their meeting on 28th 
March 2022. The Committee confirmed an increase of 5.4% to the table of fares to 
take effect from 9 April 2022 and resolved that the Licensing Regulatory Committee 
shall further review the Hackney Carriage fares later in the year.  
 

1.2 The SLDC Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Policy was adopted in August 2022, 
and allows for a review of the Hackney Carriage table of fares every 12 month period 
and as requested. 

 
2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that The Licensing Regulatory Committee:- 

(1) Note the content of this report and the 5.4% increase to the table of 
Hackney Carriage Fares agreed by this Committee on 28th March 2022 and 
implemented on 9th April 2022; and 

 (2) Consider whether to: 

i) Modify the table of fares further noting the procedure for a fare review 
has not been followed; or  

ii) Make no further modification to the table of fares; or 

iii) Instruct a full fare review whereby the local Hackney Carriage trade 
will be consulted and asked to vote on proposed modifications to the 
table of fares. The outcome of the consultation will be reported back to 
this committee; 

(3) Approve, if the Committee modify the table of fare or instruct a full fare 
review, the implementation date for the revised table of fares be one 
calendar month following the successful completion of any statutory 
consultation period.  

Page 17

Item No.7



3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 This report is presented following the decision by the Licensing Regulatory Committee 
at their meeting on 28th March 2022 to apply a 5.4% increase to the Hackney Carriage 
table of fares. Members of the Committee agreed to review the decision within a 3 
month period, however this could not be undertaken until the revised SLDC Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire policy was adopted in August 2022.  

 
3.2 Members should be aware that the agreed procedure for undertaking a full fare review 

has not been followed prior to this meeting. The fare review procedure was agreed by 
the Licensing Regulatory Committee at their meeting on 7th June 2016 and a copy is 
available in the background documents list of this report. 

 
3.3 All changes to the Hackney Carriage tariff table in use in South Lakeland must be 

approved by the Licensing Regulatory Committee. Members will be aware of point 5.4 
in the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Policy, which describes the criteria to be 
utilised when considering any revision to be made. These are as follows:  

 

 Reasonable and fair to all stakeholders  

 Proportionate with the locality  

 Benchmarking with other local authorities  

 Justified  

 Simple, and easily calculated  

 Designed with a view to practicality  

 In line with published best practice guidance  

 Mathematically correct and capable of being entered onto a meter  

 Structurally the same for vehicles of different seating capacity  

 Designed where possible to avoid either deliberate or accidental over charging. 
 
3.4 To aid members in their consideration of a further review of the Hackney Carriage tariff, 

some consultation has taken place with the local Hackney Carriage trade. The 
consultation simply asked drivers if they wanted to see a further increase to the table 
of fares and to add any comments they wished to make. A copy of responses received 
can be viewed at Appendix 1 of this report. 

 
3.5 The results from the consultation, which was sent out to 205 Hackney Carriage Drivers 

on 11 October 2022, gave the following results: 
 
 52 responses were received (25.4% of drivers surveyed) 
 44 responses voted for an increase in the current table of fares (84.6%) 
 8 responses voted for no increase in the current table of fares (15.4%) 
 
3.6 The table below shows the current South Lakeland District Council Hackney Carriage 

table of fares: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  

Page 18



Description Tariff 1 (£) Tariff 2 (£) Tariff 3 (£) 

For the whole  
distance (1st mile 
or  
part thereof) 

3.90 5.85 7.80 

For each  
subsequent 1/10th 
mile 

0.28 0.42 0.56 

Waiting time – for  
each period of one  
minute 

0.32 0.48 0.64 

Extra charge for 
each person carried 
in excess of two. 

0.74 0.74 0.74 

      SLDC Hackney Carriage table of fares (Approved 28/03/2022) 

Key 
Tariff 1 = Daily 07:00 hours to 23:00 hours (except Bank Holidays, Christmas Eve, and 
New Year’s Eve) 
Tariff 2 = Daily 23:00 hours to 07:00 hours (Tariff 1 + 50%) 
Tariff 3 = Bank Holidays from 00:00 hours to 24:00 hours at Tariff 1 +100%.  
Christmas Eve and New Year’s Eve from 19:00 hours to 23:59 hours at Tariff 1  
+100%. 
Extras = £0:74 per person in excess of 2 passengers. £100 maximum soiling charge. 

 
3.7 The table below shows the cost of a two mile journey for two passengers at tariff 1 in 

South Lakeland, compared to a two mile journey undertaken in a neighbouring Local 
Authority area: 

 
  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    Data taken from PHTM.co.uk (dated 15/11/22) 

    *Barrow BC revised table of fares from 21/11/22 

All Local Authority rates shown have been 
reviewed during 2022 

£6.70

£6.00

£6.50*

£6.60

£6.20

£6.60

£6.00

5.6

5.8

6

6.2

6.4

6.6

6.8

Cost of a two mile journey

South Lakeland Allerdale BC Barrow BC Carlisle CC Copeland BC Eden DC Lancaster CC

Page 19



4.0 Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Driver consultation responses 

5.0 Consultation 

5.1 Should members approve any change to the current table of fares set out in paragraph 
3.6 of this report, section 65 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions Act) 
1976 requires that, before any alteration to the tariff table can take effect, a public 
notice explaining the changes must be placed in a local newspaper and a consultation 
conducted for a minimum of 14 days. If no adverse comment/objection is received, the 
approved changes can take effect. Alternatively, if adverse comment/objection is 
received then the matter must be returned to allow this Committee to consider the 
representation(s). Following consideration of the representations, the Committee, at 
that meeting, must set a date upon which the fares will come into effect. 

 
6.0 Alternative Options 

6.1 As the Licensing authority is neutral in the matter of Hackney Fares tariffs, members  
are reminded that any movement in Hackney Carriage Fares is at their discretion.  
Fares can be increased, decreased or frozen. 
 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 The costs of advertising any proposal or hearing any representations concerning any  
changes to increase the level the hackney carriage fares will be met by the Hackney  
Carriage and Private Hire licensing budget. 
 

Human Resources 

7.2 N/A 

Legal 

7.3 Section 65 (1) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 allows 
the District Council to fix the table of fares for the hiring of Hackney Carriage vehicles 
throughout the District. Section 65 (2) requires that the Council shall publish its 
intention to vary the table of fares for the hiring of a hackney carriage vehicle in at least 
one local newspaper informing of a consultation period of at least 14 days. The notice 
of variation will also be made available on the Council’s website and will be available 
for inspection at the offices of the Council. If no objections are received, the variation 
may be brought into force at the end of that period. However, if any objections are 
received, these must be considered by the Committee as set out in paragraph 5.1.  

 
 The Licensing Regulatory Committee resolved, in June 2016,  to delegate authority to 

a Director to undertake a review of the hackney carriage fares every four years  or as 
and when requested by a representative of the trade rather than actively seeking a 
fare review, as was the position at the time.  The procedure to be followed when 
undertaking a fare review was set out within the report dated 7 June 2016.  If Members 
are minded to proceed with an amendment to the table of fares without following the 
established fare review process, there is a risk of challenge.  If the licensing authority 
followed the agreed procedure when reviewing the table of fares, the risk of challenge 
is mitigated. 

 

Page 20



Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment 

7.4 Have you completed a Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment? No  

7.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: The 
consideration of Hackney Carriage fares is a function of the SLDC Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire policy where a full Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment has 
been completed. 

 

Equality and Diversity 

7.6 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No    

7.7 If you have not completed an Impact Analysis, please explain your reasons: The 
consideration of Hackney Carriage fares is a function of the SLDC Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire policy where a full Equality and Diversity Assessment has been 
completed. 

 

Risk Management Consequence Controls required 

While the actual process of the  

‘fare review’ is not appealable at  

Magistrates, any conditions of 

operating a Hackney carriage 

are appealable. One of those 

conditions is the operation of a 

meter and the rates are 

prescribed by the District 

Council. 

Potential legal action which 

could result in costs and 

adverse publicity. 

Evidential and justifiable  

review of the Hackney  

Fares in South Lakeland 

following agreed process. 

Followed by a minimum 14 

day statutory consultation 

process. 

 

Contact Officers 

Sean Hall 

Principal Specialist (Health & Environment) 

s.hall@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Tel: 01539 793411 

 

Background Documents Available 

 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Council Minute LR/22 (2022) Minute 

of Licensing Regulatory Committee 

meeting confirming modification to 

the Hackney Carriage table of fares. 

https://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocume

nts.aspx?CId=298&MId=5293  

Council Minute LR/8 (2016) Minute 

of Licensing Regulatory Committee 

meeting confirming frequency of 

fare review and process. 

Frequency of Review for Hackney Carriage Fares.pdf 

(southlakeland.gov.uk) 

Page 21

mailto:s.hall@southlakeland.gov.uk
https://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=298&MId=5293
https://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=298&MId=5293
https://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/documents/s14884/Frequency%20of%20Review%20for%20Hackney%20Carriage%20Fares.pdf
https://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/documents/s14884/Frequency%20of%20Review%20for%20Hackney%20Carriage%20Fares.pdf


Name of Background document Where it is available 

National Hackney Carriage 

comparison tables 

https://www.phtm.co.uk/newspaper/taxi-fares-league-

tables  

 

 

 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent Date Signed off 

Section 151 Officer 15/11/22 17/11/22 

Monitoring Officer 15/11/22 17/11/22 

Director of Customer and 
Commercial Services 

15/11/22 16/11/22 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Lead Specialist N/A 

Human Resources Lead Specialist N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

 

Page 22

https://www.phtm.co.uk/newspaper/taxi-fares-league-tables
https://www.phtm.co.uk/newspaper/taxi-fares-league-tables


  Appendix 1 

Fare 
Increase 

Yes No Badge Number 
(Anonymised) 

Comments 

 
yes 

 
1.  with inflation running at approx 10%, and fuel 

at a much higher price and this price proven 
not to be a very temporary blip, I thought that 
a rise of 5.4% was derisory. Bearing in mind 
that this was the first rise in 8 years, taxi 
drivers' incomes have fallen to the point where 
it has been nigh on impossible to recruit to try 
and meet the demand in the area of Grange 
over Sands, where public transport is very 
poor. I know that firms in Windermere and 
elsewhere are changing their fleet make-up to 
private hire so that they can set their own fares 
as they feel necessary. Unless a substantial 
increase is given to hackney carriages, I regret 
that their numbers are falling and will continue 
to do so leaving, in the near future, a shortage 
which will inconvenience the travelling public.  

yes 
 

2.   In my opinion further increase is essential, as 
I'm not sure how I could afford my new car, of 
which the price has increased by about 40-60%. 
Also I'd like to propose a review of the age limit 
of the cars. 10 years is unfair on people who 
look after their cars and is also a form of Earth 
pollution to waste clean, reliable cars  

yes 
 

3.  
 

  
no 4.  

 

 
yes 

 
5.  Not only fuel price increases. Maintenance cost 

rises, tyres have increased by min 25%. Second 
hand car market has seen a huge increase due 
to the chip shortage for new vehicles.50% 
increase for a like for like vehicle to replace 
current one   

yes 
 

6.  
 

 
yes 

 
7.  I think a £4 start and £3 per mile would be fair 

 
yes 

 
8.  

 

 
yes 

 
9.  

 

  
no 10.  

 

 
yes 

 
11.  Must be an increase, at this stage of fares is 

more and more difficult to afford having a car, 
keeping in good condition on roads and feeding 
family 

Page 23



  Appendix 1 

 
yes 

 
12.  With the cost of living and inflation by all 

measures only set to keep increasing, we need 
a BIG hike in fares. Not a paltry 5% over 8 years 
like last time. I think a good example to look at 
would be Barrow Borough Council who are 
about to award a realistic fare increase   

no 13.  
 

 
yes 

 
14.  the taxi fares doenst cover the running cost of 

the car, the fuel costs 
 

yes 
 

15.  Due to the continuing increase in not only fuel 
since last fare increase, the  general running 
cost of vehicles ( tyres, service, ect. have hiked 
in price, and also have everyday living costs( 
gas, electric, food, interest rates ect. It is 
obvious that a substantial increase of the 
maximum running rate and fare is imposed. 
Proprietors also need to be made aware this 
would be a maximum fare rise and is at the 
discretion of the driver whether they want to 
give a cheaper fare to keep some customers 
"happy".  

yes 
 

16.  
 

 
yes 

 
17.  As fuel prices go up, so should Taxi fares  

 
yes 

 
18.  

 

 
yes 

 
19.  Fares should increase in line with inflation and 

forever increasing fuel prices 
 

yes 
 

20.  
 

 
yes 

 
21.  The earlier increase wasn’t enough and since 

then the economy is even worse and the cost 
of living has increased even more 

 
yes 

 
22.  The earlier increase wasn’t enough and since 

then the economy is even worse and the cost 
of living has increased even more 

 
yes 

 
23.   It is easy as a driver to say Yes. However, 

would increasing fares again, as a result of 
increased costs, provide that welcome increase 
in income or simply increase the number of 
customers who are unable to afford the tariff 
and therefore leave income levels static, or 
worse, reduced. Increasing the range of tariffs 
may be an option. Charging as standard an 
extra 50p or pound for example for those 
passengers travelling with pets (guide dogs 
exempt of course)   

yes 
 

24.  
 

 
yes 

 
25.  

 

Page 24



  Appendix 1 

 
yes 

 
26.  Due to constantly growing prices of fuel (over 

40%) in last 10 months(!!!), rising prices of 
living (gas, electricity and interest rates) job of 
taxi driver in Lake District stop being worth be 
doing. Every sector of industry and services is 
getting significant pay rise but not us. Our rates 
are still on same level (increase by 5% in 
June didn’t even match rate of inflation) as in 
2014. We lost 8 taxi drivers who went abroad, 
retired or simply decide to do other jobs but 
there is no “fresh blood” coming to industry. 
Council is expecting us to have fairly new cars 
but very soon we will have to start using to 
most budget cars to be able to afford finance 
on them. We need drastic fare increase to be 
able to afford run our business. 

 
yes 

 
27.  

 

  
no 28.  I don’t want a further increase in fares. Whilst 

it may be justified, the higher the fare, the 
possibility of less people using taxis exists. 

 
yes 

 
29.  £4.50 flag fall, £3.50 running mile please 

 
yes 

 
30.  £4.50 flag fall, £3.50 running mile please 

 
yes 

 
31.  

 

  
no 32.  

 

  
no 33.  

 

 
yes 

 
34.  

 

 
yes 

 
35.  Fuel is over 30% more expensive than one year 

ago  
yes 

 
36.  

 

 
yes 

 
37.  

 

 
yes 

 
38.  Thank you for asking all the drivers. We all do 

appreciate your work.  
 

yes 
 

39.  
 

  
no 40.  

 

 
yes 

 
41.  As a sole trader it’s been hard throughout the 

covid pandemic to make ends meet ! And I’m 
still not back to pre pandemic times I’m 
claiming Universal credit which helps a bit an 
increase would in my opinion make a positive 
difference to me and other cabbies tnx Mike !  

yes 
 

42.  I would like to see the minimum fare go up to 
at least £5 and the next up to £3 plus, the 
spiralling cost of living is showing no signs of 
slowing down.  

yes 
 

43.  
 

  
no 44.  

 

 
yes 

 
45.  

 

Page 25



  Appendix 1 

 
yes 

 
46.  

 

 
yes 

 
47.  

 

 
yes 

 
48.  

 

 

Page 26


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Minutes of Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committees
	007-012 15-09-22 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committe

	7 Hackney Carriage Fare Review
	Appendix 1 - Driver responses Badge Numbers Anonymised_v2


